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Strategic Report

Overview and performance summary

Summary

On 27 August 2020, the Group announced that it had reached agreement with RWS Holdings Plc ('RWS’) for an all share combination, pursuant
to which RWS acquired the entire issued and to be issued share capital of SDL by means of a court-sanctioned scheme of arrangement which
became effective on 4 November 2020.

The Directors of the former board resigned on 4 November 2020 and were replaced by Richard Thompson, Chief Executive Officer and Des
Glass, Chief Financial Officer.

The enlarged RWS Group combines RWS’s specialist technical language services with SDL’s leading language technology expertise and created
the world’s leading language services and technology group, with over 7,000 employees and global coverage. The successful integration of
SDL’s operations into the RWS Group will be management’s key focus in the year ahead.

Financial performance

Financial performance was impacted by COVID-19, with Group revenue down 2% to £368.5m (2019: £376.3m). Stronger Language Services
revenues in sectors such as corporate communications and Life Sciences have offset weaker areas such as Marketing Solutions, travel, leisure,

manufacturing and automotive.

Group adjusted operating profit! was £33.0m (2019: £37.2m}, down 11% year on year. Operating profit on a statutory basis was £11.3m (2019:
£29.7m), down 62% principally due to the recognition of £19.2m exceptional items relating to the all-share combination with RWS. Exceptional
items include the professional fees incurred in relation to the deal, accelerated IFRS 2 charges and severance costs associated with previous
management and the impairment of prepaid costs for the Group’s RCF which has been replaced by the RCF with the new parent company.
Further disclosure of exceptional items is provided in note 6.

Response tc COVID-19

As regions and countries went into lockdown throughout January to March, SDL rolled out its business continuity strategy globally, and
remained fully operational throughout the period. The ability to move 4,500 employees to home-working was testament to the investments in
IT infrastructure made in recent years, but also thanks to an incredible response from SDL’s teams. Although some colleagues have voluntarily
returned to offices in certain locations, the majority are expected to continue working from home throughout the remainder of 2021. The
Group has modified its offices to keep employees safe and to comply with all social distancing and local regulatory requirements.

SDL’s sales teams have adapted quickly to the new selling landscape. SDL's strategy has been to increase focus on stable or growing segments
of the market, cross-selling and account development, and fast on-boarding of new wins, whilst also continuing to support those customers
with tightened budgets with cost-saving approaches or new delivery models, including Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) to enable
customers to fill their resourcing gaps. A highly customer-centric approach has been more important than ever and has borne fruit in very
positive customer feedback about SDL's delivery during this period.

The commercial team structure was adapted to make it more integrated and leaner, with shorter reporting lines to enable faster decision-
making whilst not to the detriment of control resilience. As part of the sales evolution programme, the Group has made improvements to
processes, tools and training to help sales teams move faster and focus on the right opportunities. Although, like all companies, there is still
plenty to be learnt about remote selling models, the shift to more online sales, marketing and events has been broadly successful.

Employee wellbeing has been a major focus and significant efforts have been made to support colleagues in as many ways as possible. The
employee survey conducted in May-June provided feedback that 86% of employees feel supported by SDL.

Strategy execution update

Despite the significant operational response required to adapt to COVID-19, SDL has continued to execute its core strategic programmes at
pace. Indeed, there has been strong alignhment between the strategic initiatives in progress and the requirements of the new environment,
from the evolution of the go-to-market strategy to product innovation and operational efficiency programmes.

SDL’s product teams continued to deliver significant progress in the year and the innovation engine of the Group is now firing. The sales growth
of 20% in Machine Translation was a notable highlight of the period, underlining one of the important market shifts underway in the industry.
Having released SDL Language Cloud last year, SDL is gaining good traction with its Translation Management System offering and, furthermore,
delivered two major product releases powered by Language Cloud: SLATE and SDL Trados Studio 2021.

1 Adjusted Operating Profit: Operating profit before amortisation of acquired intangibles and exceptional items (as reconciled on the
income statement
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With an increased acceleration in cloud adoption and SDL’s cloud portfolio, cloud operations and infrastructure were further strengthened in
the year. Within the Content Technologies segment, Tridion Sites 9.5 was released during the second half of 2020. SDL has also begun to
review options to accelerate development of its Contenta Publishing Suite to meet identified emerging market opportunities.

SDL has continued its long-term operational efficiency programmes, substantially focused on the automation of Language Services. These
actions enabled S$DL to meet changing customer demands for higher velocity, small packet translation work, as well as increase gross margin in
the period despite slightly lower revenue.

A further development has been understanding the impact of working from home on the Group’s operational capability and workforce.
Although face-to-face collaboration remains important, it is the Group's view that a substantially larger proportion of its workforce can work
from home in future — either full time or part time. (Approximately 5% of SDL employees worked from home prior to COVID-19). The Group
previously announced that a future real estate plan had been initiated that will right-size the Group property portfolio over the next five years.
The future real estate of the Group will reduce the property portfolio by 25 offices, with a further 9 offices downsized. At the end of February
2021, 7 of these offices have been closed and 3 downsized. The Group remains on track to complete the real estate plan by the end of 2025.

Market outlook and pipeline

SDL believes its reputation as a supplier is likely to have been strengthened through its proven ability to deliver reliably throughout the
pandemic and the combination with RWS, Several of the key trends that SDL seeks to address are also likely to accelerate, inciuding adoption
of Machine Translation, cloud-based technologies, intelligent processes (smart workflows, continuous localisation) and pre-packaged solutions.
Customer activity increasingly stabilised in May and June, with some signs of more positive momentum. SDL has a good pipeline for 2021,
particularly in its stronger sectors of High Tech and Life Sciences. However, SDL remains alert to the risks of the pandemic impacting customer
spending and causing delays to sales cycles and decision-making, particularly with regard to higher margin software sales. Longer term, it is the
Group’s view that the market opportunity for SDL’s praducts and services remains attractive.

Although financial progress against the lang-term plan of achieving 15% adjusted operating margins will inevitably be impacted in the current
year, SDL remains confident in its strategy and its ability to deliver its long-term financial goals once markets stabilise further.
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Our markets

SDL operates in large, global markets and is privileged to work with many of the world’s largest and most successful enterprises and
organisations, across a wide range of sectors. Our markets are changing and present both challenges and opportunities, as our customers’
requirements become more complex and as traditional localisation activities evolve to be part of strategic content globalisation programmes.
We see an increasing focus amongst our competitors on scale and technology but only a small number of Language Service Providers (LSP)
have the full-service, global capabilities of SDL. Fewer still have been able to make the necessary investments in technology, including Al, and in
other critical areas such as information security. Our goal is to increase our share of market by winning new customers and driving higher
revenues from existing customers. '

Our Strategy

*

SDL's strategy is to become the leader in content globalisation, by deploying our services and technology platforms to help customers create,
translate and deliver their content globally, whatever the purpose of that content, wherever it sits In an organisation and whoever the
intended audiences. Helping enterprises and organisations achieve this content digital transformation requires an extensive toolkit and a highly
customer-centric approach from SDL. Our six long-term strategic objectives encompass the model and capabilities that we are building to
achieve this and transform our Company.

1) Build deep relationships with our customers

SDL’s 4,500 enterprise customers include many of the world’s largest companies, across a variety of industries, and we see signlificant
opportunities to grow our revenues by deepening our strategic relationships with these customers to help them solve their global content
challenges.

Through a continued focus on account management and deepening our customer relationships, in 2020, revenue across our top 20 customers
was £116.7m (2019: £120.9m). Revenue across our top 20 customers was impacted by a reduction in one customer as a result of the impact of
COVID-19. Excluding the impact of this customer, revenues were up £4.1m (3.9%). In addition, cross selling remained a focus for the business
and in 2020, we completed 203 cross-selling or up-selling deals. The Repeat Revenue Rate in our Language Services business was 96% (2019:
96%) and the renewal rate across our software businesses was 88% (2019: 91%). Our Net Promoter Score was 43 (2019: 36), which we use as a
key performance indicator of customer satisfaction, continued to increase. We are very pleased with the progress made with customers in
Regulated Industries (Financial Services, Life Sciences and Legal). Increasingly, we are seeing traction with these customers for SDL’s wider
portfolio of offerings, including NMT and Content Technologies. We have invested in our sales training across the entire commercial
organisation and are combining a consultative sales approach with a go-to market model based on high-value solutions. We systematically
survey our customers and proactively work on improvements at all levels of our engagement with them. Through these actions, we alm to
continue to drive our quality of revenue through up-sell and retention, cross-selling and expansion across an arganisation, and to improve our
competitive win rate.

2) Be the world’s best Language Service Provider

Through a combination of high quality expert resources, smart processes and technology-enabled innovation, we aim to deliver leadership in
the Language Services industry.

SDL’s Language Services customers include some of the world’s largest enterprises with some of the most acute content challenges as they
Increase their reach to global audiences, manage the explosion and fragmentation of content and undertake their own digital transformations.
To be the world’s best LSP requires SDL to have a world-class workforce and supply chain, the smartest, technology- enabled processes and
most robust systems. SDL is the third largest LSP in the world and amongst a small number of companies with a globali footprint capable not
only of delivering services at scale but of making the major investments required in people, infrastructure, technology and systems. These
investments have included building specialist resources in areas such as Regulated Industries, marketing solutions or new languages; the
development and adoption of NMT across our language offices, and our investments in ‘Helix’ (Business Process Automation platform),
‘Insight’ (Management Information platform) and the Company’s global IT infrastructure. In 2020, these investments proved critical in helping
us meet our customers’ needs around quality, security, time and volume whliist also enabling SDL to manage resources and costs effectively,
maintaining Linguistic Productive Utilisation at 66% (2019: 67%) and improving Language Services gross margins from 42.9% to 43.3%.
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3} Be the leader in Language and Content Technologies

Innovation is back at the heart of SDL. 2019 saw the launch of SDL Language Cloud, our major new next-generation platform and further
significant progress in our industry-leading Neural Machine Translation technology and this was further developed in 2020.

Technology is a critical part of SDL’s offering and market differentiation. A key pillar of our strategy has been to seek to capitalise on our
market position by increasing the rate of innovation delivered to the market. in 2019, 89% of our R&D effort was spent on new feature or new
platform development.

SDL Language Cloud, our first major new Translation Management platform is an end-to-end cloud solution which brings together our robust
translation management capabilities with cutting edge NMT and Al, and SDL Trados Studio, the industry’s most widely-adopted translation
productivity tool. We aim to establish SDL Language Cloud as the world’s leading language technology platform and we will continue to deliver
a fast cadence of innovation throughout 2021. We also made significant progress in our proprietary NMT technology, which now spans over
130 language pairs. We delivered industry-leading quality and capabilities, such as ‘Adaptable Language Pairs’ and a range of innovations with
the aim of establishing SDL NMT as the most cost-effective, feature-rich and robust enterprise solution in the market. Alongside, NMT, we
expanded the content analytics capabilities of our Linguistic Al technology and have deployed this in products and in our processes in 2020.

4) Be the leader in solutions in our target premium sectors

By bringing together our services and technologies, SDL can bring differentiated solutions to meet the toughest global content challenges of
customers in our target premium sectors. SDL operates across a wide range of sectors but we refer to segments with high value content needs
as ‘premium’, typically because content is regulated, highly specialist or revenue-generating — such as brand content. These sectors include
Financial Services, Life Sciences, Legal and Marketing Solutions. SDL builds repeatable solutions by combining our service expertise, technology
and sometimes third-party platforms to provide material business value to our customers. All elements of SDL’s portfolio and capabilities play a
role but the advent of cutting-edge technologies such as NMT and Linguistic Al, as well as robust connectors and cloud deployment models for
our products are key to the step change in our solutions capabilities. Overall, the solutions approach enables SDL to target higher value
problems to deliver more immediate return on investment to our customers, whilst increasing our quality of revenues. Over time, these
solutions are a path to more managed service and subscription-based revenue models.

S) Enable our people to be their best

Located in 63 offices around the world, SDL’s 4,300 employees are a diverse talent pool and our most valuable resource.

The recruitment, nurturing and retention of the best people in our industry will be fundamental to SDL’s success over the long term. in 2017,
we began implementing our multi-year People Strategy, based on the five pillars of leadership, alignment, growth and enablement, recognition
and employee experience. Each year, we are more ambitious in our approach and take concrete steps to progress on all fronts. We underpin
our People Strategy with our Life at SDL programme, which we use to promote a positive work culture and to encourage open communication
and regular feedback.

6) Achieve our target operating model

Our target operating model is global, customer-oriented, agile, automated and data-driven. Prior to 2016, SDL operated as a number of
separate business units and we continue to optimise our ‘One SDL’ structure and systems, across our corporate back-office operations as well
as our Language Services business. A joined-up approach enables operational efficiencies, a better experience for our customers and for risks
to be identified and mitigated earlier and more easily. From a financial perspective, we are targeting a reduction in total adjusted
administrative costs to 40% of revenues {2020: 43%} but our primary strategic goal is to build a scalable, flexible operating platform that can
meet the demands for the future and support new data- driven ways of working.

How our strategy impacts our long-term financial goals

By achieving our strategic objectives, we aim to build a business with sustainable competitive advantage and to transform the long-term
financial performance of the business. We are focusing on higher growth customers and segments, including our ‘premium services’ segments,
and seeking to increase our sales per customer through cross-selling and solution-selling and to win new customers. We aim to increase Group
gross margins, enabled by efficiency gains in Language Services and increased technology sales and we aim to reduce operating expenses as a
proportion of revenues, predominantly by achieving back office efficiencies. We will balance these cost savings with re-investment in our sales
activities and innovation programmes, which include our technology portfolio and Group systems.
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Divisional performance
Language Services Language Technologies Content Technologies
2020 2019 Mvmt 2020 2019 Mvmt 2020 2019 Mvmt
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue i 255.9 262.1 (6.2) 52.7 53.6 (0.9) 59.9 60.6 (0.7)
Gross profit 1106 | 1124 (1.8) 40.2 41.1 (09| 416 42.5 (0.9)
" Administrative expenses (86.9) (83.9) (3.0) (30.9) (30.9) - {26.8) (26.4) {0.4)
Adjusted operating profit 238 28.5 {4.7) 9.3 10.2 {0.9) 14.8 16.1 {1.3)
Gross Margin 43.2% 42.9% 0.3% 76.2% 76.7% (0.5%) 69.4% 70.1% (0.7%)
Operating Margin 93% | 10.9% | (1.6%)| 176% [ 19.0% | (1.4%)| 24.7% | 26.6% | (1.9%)

Language Services

SDL is one of the world’s largest Language Service Providers, with more than 1,400 in-house translators and a pool of over 17,000 freelancers
and vendors. It provides a full suite of services to localise content and make it relevant for global audiences.

Language Services delivered revenue of £255.9m which is a reduction of 2% from the prior year.

The Group’s Regulated Industries practice {Financial Services, Life Sciences and Legal) was in line with the prior year at £35.8m (2019: £95.3m),
expanding its footprint in existing accounts, cementing a strong SDL brand in the regulated space and leveraging SDL’s technologies to deliver
competitive solutions. This approach led to important wins in the fund management, medical devices and pharmaceutical sectors in the year.

Revenue from Commercial Enterprise (non-regulated) markets was adverse to the prior year by £7.9m. Positive growth with its key customers
was offset by weaker performance in EMEA and the Americas.

Language Services gross margin increased to 43.2% (2019: 42.9%) driven by productivity gains. Adjusted operating profit was £23.8m (2019:
£28.5m) representing a net operating margin of 9.3%. This year-on-year improvement reflects the increased adoption of SDL’s business process
automation platform (Helix), optimisation of the resourcing model with the DLS acquisition, and continued strong usage of Machine
Translation. These initiatives have led to a reduction in the use of external linguists and improved productivity from the Group's internal
operations, which is evidenced by the increased productivity among its linguistic community.

Language Services Process Automation

In response to the pandemic, SDL was able to move the bulk of the organisation to a work-from-home model in under a week. The
transformative work improving internal assets in recent years enabled these to be accessed securely from anywhere in the world using a
simple browser, significantly reducing the compiexity of working from home. As a result, there was no significant degradation in on-time
delivery or quality to clients.

The Helix infrastructure, which is already cloud-based, also supported this distributed way of working, and saw the highest volume of
addressable clients to date, with the overall addressable volume rising to 90% by the end of the period. A further 66 customers were on-
boarded to Helix, with 77% of all addressable customers having more than 95% of their volume managed through Helix. An increasing number
of jobs now go straight to translation without human intervention, providing quicker and more effective delivery to customers.

A key feature of the first half was an acceleration of required turnaround times and smaller per-job volumes, as customers sought to reach
their audiences faster and more regularly. SDL saw a significant increase in ultra-fast turnaround work and 35% of all jobs were below 100
words. Quick turn-around time workflows were implemented for urgent requests for a number of large enterprises. SDL’s investments in
automation have been critical to being able to meet this new pattern.

In order to continue to drive efficiencies in managing these jobs, additional automated functions were added to Helix to streamline project
financial tracking and integrate SDL Trados GroupShare, reducing administrative effort in the language offices. SDL’s first clients supported by
Language Cloud have also been integrated into Helix to provide a seamless flow from their organisation through to the Group’s Translation
Services and back. Linguistic Productive Utilisation was maintained at 66% (2019: 67%). The Group has also focussed on improving vendor
experience with updates to the WorkZone portal. In addition, SDL continues to expand the Helix managed workflows to cover more of its
technical delivery teams and to integrate Language Cloud further.
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During the year, a significant proportion of the translation work of the acquired DLS business was moved to in-house production. 80% of
addressable regulated industries content was insourced, with a positive impact on external cost of sales for a partial period in the half and the
full programme (100% insourcing of the addressable volumes) is expected to be concluded in the second half of the year.

Language Technologies

This division includes three product groups: Neural Machine Translation, Translation Management Systems and Translation Productivity.
Language Technologies was relatively flat year on year £52.7m (2019: £53.6m). Gross margin was slightly impacted by sales mix and licence
type (2020: 76.2%, 2019: 76.7%). Renewal rates were 86% (2019: 89%).

Net administrative expenses of £30.9m were in line with the prior year. Adjusted operating profit of £9.3m (2019: £10.2m) represents a margin
of 17.6% (2019: 19.0%).

Neural Machine Translation {NMT) sales grew by 20%. NMT is designed to help customers address two challenges: internal communication and
collaboration, and multilingual analytics and content intelligence. 2020 was a turnaround year for NMT, following periods of intense innovation
in neural technologies, which enabled a step change in translation output quality across a wide number of languages.

Translation Management Systems (SDL Language Cloud, SDL TMS, SDL Worldserver, SDL Multi Trans) Year-on-year sales increased by 20%. The
cloud-based platform has continued to see further advances in 2020, with a continuous release cycle.

Translation Productivity {SOL Trados) Year-on-year sales contracted by 5%. Geographically, growth in Asia and North America was offset by a
softening in demand within the Central European region, in particular tougher trading conditions in the German and Swiss manufacturing
industries due to Brexit refated uncertainty.

Content Technologies

SDL’s Content Technologies segment delivers web and structured content management solutions. It comprises SDL Tridion, SDL Contenta and
SDL XPP. Content Technologies revenue was also relatively flat at £59.9m (2019: £60.6m). Gross profit was £41.6m (2019: £42.5m). Adjusted
operating profit was £14.8m (2019: £16.1m) as a result of increased R&D spend on the release of Tridion Docs and the release of Tridion Sites.

SDL Tridion generated some significant licensing wins for both Tridion Sites and Docs, and a number of major renewals were secured. SDL
Tridion is increasingly focusing on differentiating within the content management space by concentrating on the area of digital experience plus
knowledge management, a move that has resonated well with industry analysts and customers. In the first half, SDL released “Collective
Spaces”, a collaborative authoring tool which has been adopted by several key customers. The partner ecosystem was further built out at an
accelerated pace, including a strategic partnership with Aprimo. Adoption of the Tridion Cloud content-as-a-service offering also accelerated
amongst existing on premise customers. SDL have released Tridion Sites 9.5, which will offer a completely new intuitive user experience to
increase usability and user productivity.

Within the Contenta Publishing Suite, SDL released XPP 9.4 as part of a continued progression to cloud and including enhanced user
experience. In the second half, SDL will introduce new features to its Contenta $1000D product. Contenta continued to build its strong foothold
and expansion with the US Department of Defense agencies and contractors.
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Introduction

This report provides alternative performance measures {APMs) which are not defined or specified under the requirements of the International
Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS). The Group uses these APMs to improve the comparability of information between reporting periods and
division, by adjusting for certain items which impact upon IFRS measures, to aid the user in understanding the activity taking place across the
Group’s businesses. APMs are used by the Directors and Management for performance analysis, planning, reporting and incentive purposes. A
summary of APMs are included in page 78.

Revenue

Group revenue in 2020 was £368.5m, a decrease of 2% on a reported basis, but a 1% increase on a constant currency basis. Below is a
summary of the performance by division which shows marginal decreases across all divisions with positive performance on a constant currency

basis.

2020 2019 At Actual Rates | At Constant
: £m £m ' Currency
Language Services 255.9 262.1 (2%) 1%
Language Technologies 52.7 53.6 (2%) -
Content Technologies 59.9 60.6 (1%) 3%
Group 368.5 376.3 (2%) 1%

Gross profit

Gross profit decreased by 2% to £192.4m representing a gross margin of 52.2% which was in line with the prlor year. Gross profit margin within
SDL’s largest division, Language Services, improved from 42.9% in 2019 to 43.2% in 2020. Gross profit margin within Language Technologies of
76.2% was lower than prior year of 76.7%, while Content Technologles has decreased marginally at 69.4% (2019: 70.1%) The margin variation is
driven by the mix of licence revenues between recurring and non-recurring revenues.

Adjusted administrative expenses

Adjusted administrative expenses increased by £0.6m to £159.4m. These expenses exclude the impact of exceptional items and acquisition
related amortisation.

Total R&D expenditure of £26.3m (2019: £24.4m) includes £20.5m (2019: £20.5m) of operating costs and amortisation of £5.8m (2019: £3.9m).
Additions to capitalised development costs of £8.1m (2019: £7.5m) are held on the balance sheet and amortised over the expected useful lives
of the development projects concerned, which is approximately three years. Year-on-year R&D spend increased by £0.6m to £28.6m. The
Group expects to capitalise development costs of approximately £9.0m per annum in the mid-term.

Sales and marketing costs of £52.1m (2019: £56.7m) includes direct costs for specific sales teams as well as general sales and marketing costs
which are allocated across the divisions. These costs have reduced year on year as a result of performance against variable compensation
targets.

General administration expenses of £81.0m (2019: £77.7m) include all of our Group, regional and local support functions. The increase Is as a
result of inflationary pay increases and the impact of foreign exchange losses. The IFRS 2 charge amounted to £2.3m (2019: £2.4m).

Adjusted administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue were 43.2% (2019: 42.2%). Staff costs make up a large proportion of this cost
base accounting for approximately 70% of total administrative expenses. This percentage flexes in line with movements in variable staff

compensation.

2020 2019

£m £m

R&D 26.3 ) 24.4
Sales and marketing . 52.1 56.7
General administration ) 81.0 77.7
Total adjusted administrative expenses . 159.4 158.8
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Operating profit
Statutory operating profit is reported after the amortisation of acquired intangibles and exceptional items.

Statutory operating profit was £11.3m (2019: £29.7m) which has reduced as a result of the impact of exceptional costs incurred during the
year.

Adjusted operating profit, which is operating profit before exceptional items and amortisation of acquired Intangibles, was £33.0m (9.0%
margin), (2019: £37.2m).

Amortisation of acquired intangibles

Acquired intangibles include software and customer relationships arising from acquisitions. Software is amortised over periods of between 18
months and 10 years, Customer Relationships are amortised over a period of 15 years. The amortisation charge relating to acquired intangibles
in 2020 was £3.1m (2019: £4.4m). The £1.3m decrease relates to former DLS intangible assets being fully amortised in the previous period.

Amortisation on internally generated assets, namely capitalised development spend and Helix, is treated as an expense in arriving at adjusted
operating profit of £33.0m. In general, capitalised development spend is amortised over three years and Helix is amortised over 10 years. By
2022, capitalised development spend and amortisation on the financial statements is expected to be broadly neutral.

Exceptional items

The Group incurred exceptional items in the year amounting to £19.2m of which £1.5m (2019: £2.5m), related to redundancies and other
associated charges in respect of changes to the organisational design of the business. As a result of operational improvements and systems
changes the business reduced back office charges. These restructuring charges are in line with communication made to the Group’s investors
at the start of last year.

Transaction related costs of £18.5m include costs arising on the Group’s all-share cambination with RWS Holdings Plc during the period. The
costs incurred include the transactions fees incurred by the Group, the IFRS2 charge for the accelerated vesting of the Group’s LTIP schemes,
severance costs associated with previous management and the accelerated amortisation of deal fees for the Group’s RCF which has been
replaced by the RCF with the new parent company.

Other exceptional costs were a net credit of £0.8m, principally relating to final settlement costs in relation to historic tax issues of £1.1m.
Net finance expense

Net finance expense was £3.4m (2019: £2.7m). £0.9m relates to interest and the amortisation of facility fees on borrowings in relation to the
DLS acquisition and £1.9m are finance costs on lease liabilities under IFRS 16. Exceptional finance costs were £0.6m (2019: £N|I) as a result of
the impact of the early termination of the Group’s legacy RCF.

Tax charge and effective tax rate

The Group's tax charge for the year was £3.6m (2019 restated: £7.2m) representing a statutory tax rate of 44.4% (2019 restated: 26.7%). The
corporate income tax rates in the overseas countries in which the Group operates continue to be higher than the UK corporate income tax
rate of 19% (2019: 19%), which results in a Group effective rate higher than the headline UK rate.

During the year, Management conducted a review exercise on taxation. As part of this, it was identified that a number of deferred tax assets
on losses and other temporary differences would have met the criteria for recognition in prior periods. In addition, current and deferred tax
liabilities on consolidation entries from prior periods were identified to have been overprovided. As a result of the review exercise, the Group
has presented restated comparative information in respect of taxation (see note 2 for further details).

Profit after tax

The Group delivered a profit after tax of £4.3m (2019 restated: £19.8m) driven principally by the recognition of exceptional items of £19.2m.

10
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Cash flow and financing

Adjusted operating cash flows were £69.4m (2019: £50.0m) representing an operating cash conversion of 210% {2019: 134%). Working capital
before the impact of exceptional items was an inflow of £33.6m (outflow of £1.1m in 2019) principally due to stronger collection of receivables
and better working capital management. The cash impact of exceptional items amounted to £13.2m (2019: £2.7m).

Total capital expenditure of £14.9m includes payments for maintenance capital expenditure (£4.4m), development spend (£7.9m) and
investment capital expenditure on Helix (£2.6m). Further Helix enhancements will be delivered in 2021 at a cost of £2m to £3m. Maintenance
capital expenditure is defined as tangible fixed asset expenditure, including leasehold improvements and expenditure on equipment.

Corporation tax paid amounted to £3.6m (2019: £7.1m), which has reduced following the payment of historic underpayments in the Group's
overseas territories in 2019. Tax payable in 2021 is expected to be approximately £7m. ’

No dividends were paid in the year (2019: £6.3m).

Cash flows from financing in the year were an outflow of £8.1m {2019: outflow of £19.8m). The principal reason for the decrease was the
reduction in net repayments of loans in the year. In 2019, a net repayment of borrowings of £5.4m was paid, in the current year, repayments
were equal to proceeds from borrowings and, in conjunction with no dividend payments, led to the reduction of £11.1m in financing cash

flows.

Cash balances at the year-end amounted to £51.3m with externai borrowings of £nil (2019: £26.3m).

Treasury and financing

SDL manages its financing and tax planning actlvities centrally to ensure that the Group has an appropriate structure to support its
geographically diverse business. It has clearly defined policies and procedures with any substantial changes to the financial structure of the
Group, or to its treasury practice, referred to the Board for approval. The Group operates strict controls over all treasury transactions. The
Group does not hedge against forecast future foreign currency transactions or the translation of its foreign currency profits and the statutory
results are therefore impacted by movements in exchange rates. The average rates used to translate the consolidated Income statement are

below.

The principal exposures of the Group are to the US Dollar and Euro with approximately 50% of the Group’s revenue being attributable to the
US Dollar and 25% of Group costs being Euro denominated.

A portion of the Group’s foreign currency net assets are naturally hedged using the Group’s multi-currency borrowing facilities.

The Group had a five-year £120m multi-currency revolving credit facility {RCF), expiring on 19 July 2023. Following the all-share combination
with RWS, this facility was closed in November 2020 and the Group Is now part of the overall parent company revolving credit facility.
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Strategic Report
DIRECTORS’ DUTIES

Section 172 Companies Act 2006 - Directors’ duties statement
The Board is required to act in accordance with a general set of duties detailed in Section 172 of the UK Companies Act 2006.

In the decisions taken during the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors have acted in the way they consider, in good faith, would be
most likely to promote the success of the Company and its continuing reputation for high standards of business conduct, for the benefit of its
members as a whole.

Our 2020 strategic plan was designed to have a long-term beneficial impact on the Company and to contribute to its success in reflecting its
stakeholders’ aims, detailed in the Corporate Social Responsibilities section on pages 16 to 19.

Our employees are fundamental to the delivery of our plan and we aim to be a responsible employer. The health, safety and wellbeing of our
workforce is one of our primary considerations in the way we do business. On page 13 we explain how we have continued to engage regularly
with employees throughout 2020.

The Board ensures that management operates the business to the high standards of business conduct and good governance expected and, in
doing so, contributes to the delivery of the strategic plan. The result is maintenance and nurture of the Company’s reputation, through the
construction and delivery of the plan, the long-term view and responsible behaviour. .

The ethos of the Company is to behave responsibly towards our stakeholders and treat them fairly and equally, so they benefit from a
successful performance. This section and by cross reference, parts of the Directors’ report and parts of the Strategic Report, explain how the
Board has taken account of stakeholder views and met the requirements of s172 of the Companies Act.

Commentary can also be found throughout this 2020 report as follows:

e The duty to promote the long-term success of the Company, see ‘Our strategy’ on pages 5 to 6, ‘Achieve our target operating model’
on page 6; and Risk management on pages 14 to 15.

e« Details of stakeholder engagement can be found below and in Corporate Social Responsibilities section — Employees and the SDL
Foundation on pages 12 to 13.

e  SDUs environmental impact can be found on page 18.
e  For remuneration information see the table in note 5.

Engaging with stakeholders

The Board understands the importance of stakeholder engagement to the sustained long-term success of the Group and ensures that
stakeholders are a central part of the Board’s decision-making process. SDL seeks to deliver value to and build long term relationships with its
stakeholders.

Key stakeholders

Shareholders

From 1 January 2020 until 4 November 2020 the Company’s shares were listed on the London Stock Exchange. The Board engaged with
shareholders through a full calendar of events and meetings, including the AGM, investor roadshows, analyst events, Capital Market Days and
individual shareholder meetings.

The Directors and Committee Chairs were available for questions at the AGM which was held in London and provided an opportunity for
Directors to report to investors on the Group’s activities, to answer their questions and receive their views.

On 27 August 2020, it was announced that SDL PLC and RWS Holdings plc (“RWS”) had reached agreement for an all-share combination,
pursuant to which RWS would acquire the entire issued and to be issued share capital of SDL by means of a court-sanctioned scheme of
arrangement. Subsequent to 30 September 2020, following the shareholders of both SDL and RWS voting in favour of the proposed all-share
combination, a court sanctioned scheme of arrangement became effective ‘on 4 November 2020. RWS issued 113,338,511 new ordinary shares
as consideration to acquire 100% control of SDL.

Following the combination, Richard Thompson, CEQ and Des Giass, CFO of RWS Holdings Plc were appointed as Directors of SOL Limited. The
new Directors are engaged in the day-to-day operations of the business and work has begun on integrating SDL and RWS as a combined

business.
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Employees - Engagement and culture
Our employees are concerned with opportunities for personal development and career progression; a culture of diversity and inclusion;
compensation and benefits; and the ability to make a difference within the Group. Board engagement with employees is via:
e  Various actlvities and forums to foster participation in Group events, invite opinions, questions and ideas.
s Anopinion survey which canvassed views to understand employee sentiment on issues.
Muitimedia channels for sharing information and as a depository of in-house news items of interest.
The Chief HR Officer reports to the Board on culture, talent and colleague engagement.
Monitoring senior leadership capability, development and succession.
Representation at Board meetings through the Senior Independent Director and further engagement as part of the SiD hosted Town
Hall meetings.
Whistleblowling reports.
e  Monitoring progress on achieving greater diversity and inclusion, and fostering respect of all racial identities and ethnic minorities
through understanding the impact that movements such as Black Lives Matter are having on employees.
»  Reviewing health and safety performance and approach to monitoring and reporting of incidents

The global restrictions in place due to Covid-19 have paused face to face engagement activities but we have introduced virtual methods of
communication to ensure we continue to maintain the same level of engagement. How the engagement with employees influenced the
Board’s decision making:
¢ The Board oversaw the response to the Covid-19 pandemic as it developed, to ensure colleagues were moved safely to a working
from home environment, how morale was being maintained and employees were kept connected. 4,500 home offices were set up
within 2 weeks, and the Group moved to a virtual ‘Life at SDL’ engagement strategy.
Initlatives included:
e  Coronavirus Intranet site for resources such as FAQs, health and wellbeing information, WHO videos, IT guldes and more
e Remote Working workshops to discuss tips, strategies and take questions from employees
¢  Coffee chats, cooking sessions, drawing competitions for families, weekly newsletters and much more, set up locally by Site
Leaders
e  Monthly Company Updates for employees to get an update from Executives on our pandemic response
o Weekly fitness sessions set up for employees to connect and exercise together
e  Employee Learning Zone with learning assets on remote working and health and wellbeing
e  Pulse survey to understand how employees were coping through the pandemic
o  We had a 70% response rate with our survey results revealing that overall 86% felt supported by SDL, 91% said their
manager was supportive, 85% agreed that the systems/infrastructure were in place and 88% believed company
communications were meeting expectations. 84% said productivity had not been impacted and our Life at SDL culture
remained strong with 81% proud to work at SDL. 70% said SDL cares about them and 75% would recommend SDL as
an employer.
e The Board continued to encourage career development for high potential employees via leadership training.
» Endorsed the ongoing simplification of pracesses and investment in systems (e.g. global payroll implementation), and spent time
reviewing the alignment of the Group’s reward and.recognition arrangements.
¢  Allemployees are required to regularly refresh via ELearning the Code of Conduct which helps to ensure that the Group (i) promotes
ethical business practices and conducts business In accordance with applicable laws and regulations; (ii} behaves fairly
with colleagues, customers, partners and suppliers; and (iii) provides a safe route for colleagues to raise concerns either through
reporting internally or through an independent and anonymous hotline .

Customers

Against the backdrop of COVID-19, the SDL customer experience takes on a new meaning. The sales team have reoriented their efforts to
meet customers’ primary needs such as safety, security and convenience. Physlical Interactlon has been minimized; the teams have stepped up
to meet demand from those industries most affected e.g. regulated industries; and yet remain reachable via alternative channels. SDL’s efforts
reinforce the trust it has built by showing it cares for customers and understands its obligation to serve and invest in the community.

Where relevant, the Board always seeks to ensure that the customer’s viewpoint is taken into account as part of its decision making process,
and will frequently consider the impact that a decision will have on customer success

Partners and suppliers

Here too, relationships matter. Despite the difficult times, our work and meetings are efficlently handled remotely with services continuing to
be performed under the applicable local government guidelines. Partners and suppliers are an extension of the Group, representing our brand
in the market and allowing us to scale our business. They bring our solutions to life, serving our customers locally and creating an ecosystem of
complementary solutions and services. SDL wants the best partners and suppliers to choose to work with SDL. The Group has remained
operational throughout the pandemic and is committed to ensuring business continuity whilst protecting its partners and suppliers.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Management process

SDL Limited
31 December 2020

We have an established risk management process built around our Risk Register to identify, assess and monitor the principal risks that the
business faces. This follows a standard methodology which considers the likelihood of occurrence and the scale of potential impact, both

financial and reputational, on the business.

Whilst the company’s shares were listed on the London Stock Exchange, the executive management team would regularly review and the audit
committee challenge, analyses of those risks which were believed could seriously affect the Group’s long-term positioning and performance,

reputation or its ability to deliver against its KPIs.

Risks are reviewed as a top down and bottom up activity at the Group and the business function level. The content of the Risk Register is
considered and discussed through regular meetings with senior management and reviewed by the Executive Directors.

The Strategic risks table sets out the principal risks, their link to strategic objectives, their movement during the year and a summary of key
controls as well as any mitigating factors. The Board considered these to be the most significant risks faced by the Group that may impact the
achievement of the strategic objectives. They do not comprise all of the risks associated with our business and are not set out in priority order.
Additional risks not presently known to management, or currently deemed to be less material, may also have an adverse effect on the

business.

Strategic Risks:

Competition Strategy - services

Risk

There is a risk that the operating model does not support growth ambitions,
leading to the services business failing to sustain a competitive advantage.

How we manage risk

Well established technology and product development together with robust
quality management processes keeps the needs of customers central to
decision-making and SDL competitively positioned.

Competition Strategy - technology

Risk

There is a risk that SDL is unable to clearly identify, deploy, or sustain
competitive advantage over industry and non-industry participants, including
product development, leading to a decline in market share.

How we manage risk

Product development and marketing oversee competitive positioning. Continued
product integratton, in line with the development strategy, deepens customer
engagement. .

Operational Risks:

Human resources

Risk

There is a risk that market competition affects our ability to retain key talent,
{eading to a decline in the ability and experience of key roles in key
functions.

How we manage risk

The Talent planning and people development programs to retain talent
continued during 2020, despite the COVID-19 pandemic. All employees
worldwide were swiftly transferred to a virtual ‘Life at SDL’” whilst working
from home, with a supporting engagement plan which included: intranet site
for resources such as FAQs, health and wellbeing information, WHO videos,
IT guides; remote working workshops; weekly newsletters from local Site
Leaders; monthly company updates; fitness sessions; Learning zone; and
with regular local contact points plus a group wide survey to understand how
employees were coping.

Information security - including cyber
Risk )

There s a risk that SDL fails to respond to emerging security requirements
and may be adversely affected by activities such as system Intruslons, denial of
service attacks, virus spreading and phishing. ... . ... L
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How we manage risk

SDL has In place data recovery and systems recovery procedures, securlty
measures and business continuity plans in the event of failure or disruption or
damage to the Group’s technology or systems. In addition the Group carries out
third party penetration testing, trains staff on data security risks and holds cyber
insurance.

Transformation & control

Risk

There is a risk that resistance from end-users and impacted groups is
encountered resulting in unrealised returns from the investment in systems.

How we manage risk

Reviews of internal systems are undertaken through program and project
management functions. SDL has a rolling programme of updates and monitoring
across the global infrastructure.

Legal & compllance

Risk

There is a risk that legal and regulatory requirement changes are not met
leading to the loss of licence to operate, reputational damage, or financial
loss.

How we manage risk

The Group works with in-country third party advisors where necessary to ensure
compliance with local regulations and data privacy laws in the territories in which
it operates. The Group ensures that its people are properly trained on the
implications of applicable data privacy legislation. Additional risk assessments
have been put in place at all office locations to ensure compliance with the
government’s rules around safe distancing during the CQVID-19.

Business continuity Induding COVID-19

" Risk

. lost opportunities.

There is a risk that disruption to the business (from geopolitical issues, IT,
health pandemics etc.) results in loss of service to clients, lost revenue, and

How we manage risk

financial resources to ensure continued ability to absorb changes in demand.

Since March 2020 a comprehensive communication plan has kept all
employees informed on the pandemic and actions taken. The Group continues
to follow local Government guidance and systems have been put in place to
enable everyone to work from home. Office locations have been assessed and
adapted to provide a safe and clean working environment for any member of staff
wishing to return to the office. The Group is diversified by geography, markets,
services and clients. SDL has performed financial modelling to stress test Its

Financial risks:

Currency movements

Risk

A significant proportion of the Group’s revenues and profits are generated in
forelign currencies. There is a risk that trading patterns and/or intercompany
trading/loan positions expose the Group to foreign exchange risk.

How we manage risk

The Treasury function overseas the controlled programme of intercompany
balance settlements to minimise balance sheet exposures. There is regular
reporting and review of any currency exposures.

Taxation

Risk

There Is a risk that assessment by tax autharities results in disallowance of
intercompany or other charges, in addition, a risk exists that the Group may
require provisions in respect of certain uncertain tax positions arising in one of the
tax jurisdictions the Group operates in.

How we manage risk

Business models are reviewed by the Group Tax Manager and external
professional advice is sought on group structuring, including In particular transfer
pricing framework, sales taxes and employment taxes. The Group does not
participate in aggressive tax planning strategles.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

People

Diversity & Inclusion

Demonstrating the prominent role that Diversity & Inclusion plays in our culture, SDL made Diversity & Inclusion a strategic objective in 2020,
with emphasis on ways in which we create work environments where employees from diverse communities can grow, develop and thrive. Key
actions taken during 2020 included:

. Forums were held with all 4 of our focus areas—LGBT+, Ethnicity, Women, and Physical & Mental Well-Being. Co-lead by an executive team member
and an HR leader, over 2,000 employees attended these forums, and we received a tremendous amount of enthusiasm for the work we are doing in
diversity and inclusion, along with many practical ideas that we used to inform our plans.

. We produced a blog for Women in Localization that we posted an external channels, which spoke to the importance of maintaining mental well-being
during the pandemic.

. We embraced the diversity of our LGBT+ community by celebrating PRIDE with a four part documentary series, explaining the history and meaning of
PRIDE and giving a platform for employees to tell their stories. Many of our local sites also launched their own celebrations.

*  We set out to heighten and deepen our awareness of all the contributions Black people have had in shaping our world and their rich cultural heritage
by celebrating Black History Month. We produced powerful videos sharing the history, stories, and culture recognizing the global nature of people
everywhere—which received immensely high accolades. We used internal social channels to share timelines and other facts about Black History to
get our employees involved in sharing their celebratory messages and thoughts.

. We explored Unconscious Bias with a workshop we created that discusses the stereotypes we all have that are unintentional, deeply ingrained, and
able to influence behaviour. With a successful pilot under our belt, we started running this program across the company—with attendees telling us
that it had immediate impact on the way they look at bias, and how uncovering biases and how they influence us is a first step to addressing them.

. We expanded our recruitment sources to include diverse sourcing channels.

. We put a strong focus on Physical & Mental Well-Being to support our employees through the global pandemic and to help them adjust to remote
working.

*  We celebrated International Day of Happiness and gathered stories from across the globe to produce a fun video on “What Makes Me Happy at
Work.”

¢ Inan interview with an external expert and author on Men’s Mental Health, we produced a video on Men’s Mental Health to recognize International
Men’s Day—with resounding feedback from both men and women across the company on how important this topic is and how the strategies
discussed are so helpful to them and those they care about.

. In recognition of International Day of People with Disabilities, we provided Insight into disabilities that are not visible, sharing personal stories and
some tips for seeking support from peers.

e  Since we want people to be aware of the importance ergonomics has on physical health, we shared tips and techniques for setting up ergonomically
sound “pop-up” offices.

e Virtual exercise classes, yoga sessions, and mindfulness videos and programs were made available to employees because their well-being matters to
them being able to be their best at work and in life overall.

Learning & Development

Leadership development remained a top priority for us at SDL, with our consistent goal of helping enable our leaders to connect well with
others and build high performing team. In addition to continuing to coach eaders through our internal coaching team, 185 leaders

participated in our flagship Foundations of Leadership Program during 2020. This program provides leaders with the knowledge, skills and
practice in areas such as Emotional Intelligence, Positive Conversations, Aligning Work to Goals, Coaching, and Building High Performing Teams.
In the midst of the pandemic, we quickly re-purposed this 4 day face-to-face program into virtual delivery.

SDL continued to build a sustainable, skilled workforce through its commitment to continuous learning—providing employees with easy-to-
consume, relevant and just-in-time learning that helps maximize their potential and success. Through our MyLX learning platform, employees
are able to access a plethora of learning assets that build their capability. Mid-way through the year in July 2020 we launched a new and
improved platform, with usage statistics for July through December included in the chart on the following page:
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)
Overafl Usage: 9 July 2020* to 4 December 2020 -«
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An ongoing area of importance to SDL is ensuring that our compliance-oriented education is provided in a timely fashion to our employees,
given its importance to company operations. The chart below shows completion statistics for our compliance courses:
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (continued)

Foundation
SDL Foundation has been operating since 2008 and we look to partner with NGO’s that we can have an impact through structural and
sustainable projects. Our goal is to help people and communities realise their potential in a sustainable way.

The Foundation is led by trustees who collaborate and share updates to employees through our internal social network, external Facebook
pages and various updates throughout the year. Since 2009 we have donated £2m through our Transform It program and £39k through our
employee Match It program. We encourage our employees to work with local charities and during 2020 employees have volunteered 214
days to local causes where they have been able to offer help and support. This is working with the restrictions of Covid-19 and is a comparison
to 478 days booked in 2018.

We continue to engage with our partners and employees.

Environment

The table below provides a summary of the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (‘SECR’) mandatory reporting requirements for the SDL
Limited UK sites for the financial period of 1st January 2020 to 31st December 2020: '

SDL Limited SECR 2020 Summary

Reporting Year End 31 December 2020

UK and Offshore

Emissions Source =
Energy Consumption (kWh) CO,e tonnes

Scope 1 — Natural Gas and Fuel

Consumption 13,229 24

Scope 2 - Electricity 689,071 ‘ 160.7

Scope 3 —Personal Cars used for
Business Purposes

Total

(Scope 1 + Scope 2 + Scope 3)

financial Turnover £M | £368.7M
Intensity Ratio:

CO,e tonnes/turnover £M
Intensity Ratio:
CO,e kg/turnover £M

Intensity Ratio:

CO.e kg/turnover yearly % change

29,083 6.8

731,383 169.9

0.4608

460.8

N/A;

Scope:

In accordance with the 2018 regulations which amend the Large and Medium-Sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, the following energy
and carbon sources are required to be reported within Large Unquoted Company
Annual Accounts:

. Natural Gas Consumption
e  Electricity Consumption

Scope and Methodology ®  Transport Consumption where the organisation has direct responsibility for the
purchasing of fuel e.g. for company vehicles and personal vehicles used for
business purposes.

Methodology:

The following methodologies have been used to calculate the above COze emissions:
. The Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
i {revised edition)
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1o The Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affalrs (DEFRA) Environmental

®  Reporting Guidelines {2020)

Despite the challenges caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, SDL were able
to implement energy saving initiatives in the reporting period. These
include:

e Reducing unnecessary equipment usage
Energy Efficiency Action Taken e Increasing the use of video conferencing

Preliminary estimates show that implemented saving initiatives have
avoided circa 43,600kWh in electricity and fue! consumption. Once
normality has returned to working conditions, this estimate can be
re-calculated to more accurately measure the benefit of the initiatives.

Note - This is the first year of SECR compliance, therefore a cor;lpaﬂson of previous yeafs energy and carbon performance is not required.

Key findings:

e Overall energy consumption was calculated to be 731,383kWh, resulting in 169.9 tCO2e of emissions.

e Scope 1 consumption and emissions were calculated to be circa 13,229kWh (1.8%) and 2.4 tCO2e (1.4%) respectively. This consisted
of 100% building energy consumption, as no UK company vehicle usage was reported.

e  Electricity consumption {Scope 2) was the most significant category, both in terms of energy consumption and emissions. Electricity
consumption was reported at 689,071kWh (94.2%), resulting in the emission of 160.7 tCO2e (94.6%).

e  Scope 3, transport (personal cars used for business purpose's) accounts circa 29,083kWh (4.0%) of energy. This resulted in the
emission of 6.8 tCO2e (4.0%).

o  Covid-19 restrictions have made it difficult to implement or measure the success of any energy saving opportunities as many SDL
employees have been working from home. Despite this, SDL implemented two new energy saving Initiatives to reduce unnecessary
equipment usage and increase the use of video conferencing. Preliminary estimates show these initiatives have avoided 43,600kWh
which is equivalent to circa 11 tCO2e or 6.5% of SDL Limited overall emissions.

e No annual comparison is required for this year as this is the first year SDL Limited is required to comply with Streamlined Energy
Carbon Reporting.

e  Comparing overall carbon emissions to financial turnover for the reporting period, SDL have an intensity ratio of 460.8 kgCO2e per
£M turnover (0.4608 tCO2e per £M turnover).
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This section of the strategic report constitutes SDL’s non-financial information statement.

SDL Limited
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Reporting requirements

Policies and statements which
govern our approach

Details of Policies, Statements,
Due Diligence & Outcome

Environmental matters

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
Environmental Policy Statement

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting disclosure
for SOL Limited UK sites (page 18).

Employees

Global Caode of Conduct

Employee Assistance Policy

SDL Employee Handbook

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy

" Employees — Engagement and culture (page 13)

Corporate Social Responsibility - People (page 16)

Social matters

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
Group Sustainability Policy

Corporate Social Responsibility — Environment {page
18)

Respect for human rights

Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Policy

Employees — Engagement and culture (page 13}
Corporate Social Responsibility — People (page 16)

Anti-corruption and bribery

Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy
Whistleblowing Policy

Available to users on the SDL website:
https://www.rws.com/about/csr/corporate-
governance/

Business model

Our Strategy Execution Update

Strategic Report - Strategy execution update (page 3)
Our strategy (page 5)

Principal risks

N/A

Principal risks and uncertainties (pages 14-15)

Non-financial KPis

SOL measures three non-financial areas of its business:

e  Renewal Rate — We measure this by tracking the % of our customers that renew their contracts with the Group as a measure of

customer satisfaction and retention.

e  Net Promoter Score — We measure our net promoter score alongside our renewal rate as a measure of brand loyalty and the

satisfaction of our customers.

¢  Employee Engagement ~ We survey our employees with our Pulse Survey annually to gauge how supported they feel by the
company, their manager, the culture and whether they would recommend SDL as an employer to friends and family. We use this to
foster a connection with, and commitment to, our business.

The strategic report included on pages 3 — 20 was approved by the board on 27/05/2021.

By order of the Board

s

Des Glass
Director
27 May 2021
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Governhance

Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report, together with the audited accounts for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The governance arrangements for the Company have undergone significant change during the year, as a result of the all-share combination of
the Company by RWS Holdings Plc, a company with its shares listed on the Alternative investment Market (‘AIM)’), a London Stock Exchange
regulated market. The combination was undertaken by means of a scheme of arrangement which became effective on 4 November 2020.

The Group complied with the UK Corporate Governance code from 1 January 2020 to 4 November 2020 when the Group was delisted was the
London Stock Exchange. RWS Holdings Plc complies with the QCA code.

information presented in other sections of the Annual Report

Other information which is required to be included in a Directors’ Report can be found in other sections of the Annual Report, as described
below. In accordance with s414C(11), the following items that the directors consider are of strategic importance have been included in the
strategic report.

— Commentary on the likely future developments in the business of the Group is included in the Strategic Report.

— Adescription of the Group's financial risk management and its exposure to risks arising are set out in the Strategic report and note 22 to
the accounts.

— Disclosures concerning greenhouse gas emissions are contained in the sustainability review of the Strategic Report on page 18.

— Details of engagement with employees and other business relationships are set out in the Strategic Report.

— Commentary on research and development activities is contained in the Strategic Report.

General information

SDL PLC re-registered as a private limited company on 18 November 2020 following its all-share combination with RWS Holdings plc on 4
November 2020. SDL Limited is registered in England and Wales under company number 2675207 with a registered office address of New
Globe House, Vanwall Road, Maidenhead, SL6 4UB. The principal activities of SDL Limited and its subsidiaries throughout the year are
described in the Strategic Report on pages 3 to 20.

RWS Holdings plc is theultimate parent company of the Group and operates internationally.

Directors and their interests
The directors during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

Current directors (date of appointment 4 Navember 2020):
e  Richard Thompson
e  Desmond Glass

Resigning directors (date of resignation 4 November 2020):
o David Clayton, Chairman
Mandy Gradden, non-executive director
Alan McWalter, non-executive director
Glenn Collinson, non-executive director
Adolfo Hernandez, Chief Executive Officer
Chris Humphrey, non-executive director
Gordon Stuart, non-executive director (appointed 27 Jan 2020}
Xenia Walters, Chief Financial Officer

As part of the all-share combination, any SDL shares held by directors were exchanged for shares in RWS Holdings plc.

Interests in contracts
As at the date of this report, there is no contract or arrangement with the Company or any of its subsidiaries that is significant in relation to the

business in which a director of the Company is materially interested.

Powers
The powers of the Directors are set out in the Company’s Articles of Association plus those granted by special resolution at the AGM on 26 May

2020 and the General Meeting on 9 October 2020.
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Governance continued

Directors’ Report

Remuneration
Executive Directors’ contracts do not provide for extended notice periods or compensation in the event of termination or a change of control.
The remuneration of directors paid by the Company during the year is disclosed in note 5.

Political and charitable donations

During the year no political donations were made and no charitable donations were made to external charities. We encourage our employees
to work with local charities and during 2020 employees volunteered 214 days (2019: 478) to local causes where they have been able to offer
help and support. All volunteer work was carried out observing the restrictions of COVID-19.

Going concern
The Strategic Report on pages 3 to 19 considers the Group’s activities and outlines the developments taking place in the markets for our
products and services. )

Strategic, operational and financial risks plus actions taken for their mitigation are set out on pages 14 to 15.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had cash of £51.3m and no borrowings. The facility the Group drew down from was fully repaid in the year
and terminated early in favour of the arrangements in place within the new Group parent, RWS Holdings Plc. Accordingly, the Group now has
access to the RWS Group financing arrangements and included as part of this is a five-year $120m revolving credit facility (RCF), expiring in
February 2024, of which $31m was in use at year end. At year end US$89m was undrawn, while the RCF also offers an accordion facility of
US$80m, subject to lender consent. The RWS Group has assessed its forecast compliance with these covenants at 31 March 2021, 30
September 2021 and 31 March 2022 and concluded that even in the most severe but plausible scenario modelled, the RWS Group will continue
to comply with its covenants.

The Group has a resilient balance sheet position, with net assets of £267.3m as at 31 December 2020, having made a profit for the year of
£4.3m and delivered net cash flows from operating activities of £47.6m for the year then ended.

The business continuity plans actioned by the Group to date have resulted in operations continuing on a remote working basis but with the
possibility of a reduction in revenues in the current year as a result of the uncertain macro-economic environment caused by the COVID-19
pandemic.

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecast scenarios for a minimum period of 12 months that, could arise if revenues were to reduce
compared to the expectations set at the year end. These scenarios include a revenue decline of 20% for a period of six months, which the
Directors believe to be a severe but plausible scenario. All revenue reduction modelling is accompanied by a multi-phased cost reduction plan.
This includes the prioritisation of insourcing to reduce linguistic outsourcing costs, restrictions on the Group’s variable compensation plans,
restriction on new hires and tight control of discretionary spend. The global stay at home directive automatically results in additional cost
savings in respect of travel and entertainment.

In conclusion, the Directors believe that the Group is well-placed to manage its business risks and to counter a potential drop in revenues by
cost mitigation actions under their control. After due consideration of trading performance to date, the results of the stress-test scenarios and
the Director’s view of the likelihood of these occurring, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements.

Directors’ and officers’ insurance (D&0) and Indemnification

A six-year D&O tail policy was purchased from the current insurance carriers shortly before the completion of the all-share combination. This
covers directors and officers who have ceased to hold office. The Company, as a PLC, entered into deeds of indemnity with each of its directors
to the extent permitted by law and the Company’s articles of association, in respect of all losses arising out of, or in connection with, the
execution of their powers, duties and responsibilities, as Directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. These indemnities were Qualifying
Third-Party indemnity provisions as defined in section 234 of the Companies Act 2006.

Disclosure of relevant audit information
So far as the Directors who are in office at the time of the approval of this report are aware, there is no relevant audit information (namely,
information needed by the Company’s auditors in connection with the preparation of their auditors’ report) of which the auditor is unaware.

Each Director has taken all the steps a Director might reasonably be expected to have taken to be aware of relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.
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Directors’ Report

Employees
Information regarding our employees and thelr involvement within the business, including the Company'’s policy towards discrimination and
diversity can be found below.

Our employment policies are developed to reflect local legal, cultural and employment requirements. We ensure that there are equal
opportunities for all employees, irrespective of age, gender, ethnicity, race, religion, sexual orientation or disability. Applications for
employment from disabled persons are treated equally where the requirements of the job may be adequately carried out by a disabled person.
Where existing employees become disabled it is our policy, wherever practicable, to provide continuing employment under normal terms and
conditions and to provide retraining if necessary.

We have an inclusive environment where colleagues are treated with dignity and respect. By encouraging diversity, and employing people with
different experiences, backgrounds and talent, we aim to reflect the customers and communities we serve and strengthen and grow as a
business. Our selection, training, development and promotion policies ensure equal opportunities for all colleagues, regardless of factors such
as gender, marital status, race, age, sexual preference and orientation, colour, creed, ethnic origin, religion or belief, disability (including
colleagues who become disabled during service). All decisions are based on merit.

We are working continually to improve the communication channels we use to engage, consult, inform and connect with colleagues, both to
enable awareness of the financial and economic factors affecting the Group’s performance and to ensure our colleagues’ voices are heard. Our

colleagues’ feedback is important to us and we recognise that to drive our business forward we must respond to their feedback to ensure they
are engaged in the decisions we make for the business.

We encourage the involvement of our employees and significant matters are cammunicated through regular updates from the CEQ; Site

Leaders; management meétings; the Group's intranet; a periodic digital magazine; discussion forums and informal briefings. Employee
involvement is an essential element of the business

Health and Safety

The Directors have ultimate responsiblility for Health and Safety.

A Health and Safety Committee, chaired by the CFO, met regularly during 2020 to discuss health and safety policy and review activities. Specific
tasks were delegated to local managers and suitably trained individuals within the organisation.

SDU’s policy on Health and Safety includes the following:

— To provide information, training and supervision as is necessary to ensure health and safety at work;
— To provide and maintain safe equipment;

. — To comply with statutory requirements for health, safety and welfare in each global office;

— To maintain safe and healthy working conditions; and

— Toreview and revise this policy as necessary at regular intervals.

No RIDDOR reports were submitted to the Health and Safety Executive (2019: zero).

The Directors’ Report included on pages 21 to 23 was approved by the Board on 27/05/2021.

By order of the Board

Des Glass
Director
27 May 2021
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group and parent Company financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent Company financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they
are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Accounting Standards in compliance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent Company financial statements in
accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. '

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and parent Company and of their profit or loss for that period. In preparing each of the Group and parent
Company financial statements, the Directors are required to:

— select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

— make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant, reliable and prudent;

— for the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards in

compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

— forthe parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the parent company financial statements;

— assess the Group and parent Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern;

and

— use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent Company and enable them to ensure that its
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have generaf
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report and Directors’ Report that complies
with that law and those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s website.
Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Des Glass
Director
27 May 2021
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Financial Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SDL LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SDL Limited (‘the parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) for the year ended 31
December 2020 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, the Consolidated and the parent company Statement of Financial
Position, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and parent
company Statement of Changes in Equity, and the related Group notes 1 to 25 and parent company notes 1 to 15, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is
applicable law and International Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion:

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of the
group’s profit for the year then ended;
. the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards In conformity with

- therequirements of the Companies Act 2006;
. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance in with United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice; and
. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (15As (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of
the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve
months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibllities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.
However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. :

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report set out on pages 3 to 23, other than the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we Identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financlal statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SDL LIMITED (continued)

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in
our opinion:
e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or ’
the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 24, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine Is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the finandal statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed
betow. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the
entity and management.

Our approach was as follows:

e  We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the company and determined that the
most significant frameworks that are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statements are those that relate to the
reporting framework (International Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, FRS 101,
and the Companies Act 2006), the relevant tax compliance regulations in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates and the EU
General Data Protection Regulations {GDPR).

e We understood how SDL Limited is complying with those frameworks by making enquires of management, those responsible for legal
and compliance procedures and the Company Secretary. We observed that there is a culture of honesty and ethical behaviour and a
strong emphasis is placed on fraud prevention. We corroborated our enquires through our review of Board minutes.

e We assessed the susceptibility of the Group and Company'’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how fraud might
occur by meeting with management to understand where it considered there was susceptibility to fraud. We also considered
performance targets and their propensity to influence efforts made by management to manage earnings or influence the perceptions
of analysts. Where the risk was considered higher, we performed audit procedures including testing of manual journals and were
designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free from fraud and error.

e  Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify noncompliance with such laws and regulations. Cur
procedures involved enquiries of management and those charged with governance, legal counsei; and journal entry testing with a
focus on manual consolidation journals and journals indicating large or unusual transactions based on our understanding of the
Group.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on‘the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
https://www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Ernnt < oy (LA

Joe Yglesia {Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Reading

28 May 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
for the year ended 31 December 2020

SDL Limited

31 December 2020

Restated!
2020 2019
Notes £m £m

Revenue 3 368.5 376.3
Cost of sales (176.1) (180.3)
Gross profit 192.4 196.0
Administrative expenses (181.1) {166.3)
Operating profit 4 113 29.7
Adjusted operating profit 33.0 37.2
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (3.1) (4.4)
Exceptional items 6 (18.6) (3.1)
Operating profit 113 29.7
Finance expense (including exceptional finance costs of £0.6m 2019: £Ni) 6,7 (3.4) (2.7)
Profit before tax 79 270
Tax charge 8 (3.6) (7.2)
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company

43

198

!Tax balances have been restated. See Note 2 for further details.

The accompanying notes to the accounts on pages 33 to 64 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Restated® ’
2020 2019

; . L Em £m
Profit for the year 43 " 198
Other comprehensive income / (expense):
Items that may be redassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign exchange differences arising on the translation of foreign operations * 6.2 (11.0)
Foreign exchange differences arising on the translation of foreign currency quasl )
equity loans to foreign operations, net of tax (4.2) 19
Total other comprehensive / income / (expense) 20 (9.1)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company ) 6.3 107

1Tax balances have been restated. As a consequence, profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax, has been restated. See note 2 for further
details.

The accompanying notes to the accounts on pages 33 to 64 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

at 31 December 2020
Restated? Restated®
2020 2019 2018
Notes £m fm £m
Non current assets
Intangible assets 11 2163 2152 2229
Property, plant and equipment 10 119 11.0 9.1
Right of use assets 20 284 295 -
Deferred tax assets 8 9.6 83 . 93
Non current tax assets 31 31 -
Other receivables 14a 23 2.6 24
Capitalised contract costs 14b 05 0.6 08
272.1 270.3 2445
Current assets '
Trade and other receivables 14a 981 101.6 108.3
Capitalised contract costs 14b 19 21 1.9
Current tax assets 34 36 6.3
Cash and cash equivalents 16 513 263 19.8
154.7 133.6 136.3
Total assets . 426.8 403.9 380.8
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 (103.9) (92.5) (105.1)
Lease liabilities 20 (8.1) {7.6) -
Current tax liabilities (6.1) (5.9) (10.0)
Provisions 17 {1.5) (0.2) {0.7)
(119.6) {106.2) (115.8)
Non current liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 (1.8) {1.9) (0.7)
Lease liabilities 20 {24.1) (24.4) -
Borrowings 16 - - {(5.4)
Deferred tax liabilities 8 (7.2) (8.0) (8.7)
Non current tax liabilities (2.7) (4.3) -
Provisions 17 (4.1) (5.1) (3.3)
(39.9) (43.7) (18.1)
Total liabilities (159.5) (149.9) (133.9)
Net assets 2673 2540 246.9
Represented by:
Share capital 18 0.9 0.9 0.9
Share premium 137.6 136.8 136.0
Retained earnings 106.5 96.0 80.6
Translation reserve ' 223 203 29.4
Total equity 2673 254.0 246.9

Tax bafances have been restated. See Note 2 for further details.
These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 May 2021 and were signed on'its behalf by:

Des Glass
Director
The accompanying notes to the accounts on pages 33 to 64 form part of these financial statements. Company No: 02675207
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2020

SDL Limited
31 December 2020

Share Share Retained Transltation

capital premium earnings reserve Total

£m £m ) fm £m £m
At 1 January 2019 (as previously stated) 0.9 136.0 79.3 29.4 245.6
Prior year adjustment - - 13 - 13
At 1January 2019 (restated) 09 136.0 80.6 294 246.9
Effect of adoption of IFRS16 Leases - - (0.9) - (0.9)
At 1January 2019 {restated) 09 136.0 80.2 294 246.5
Profit for the year (restated) - - 1.8 , - 19.8 .
Other comprehensive expense - - - (9.1) (9.1)
Total comprehensive income (restated) - - 198 {9.1) 10.7
Issue of shares - 0.8 - - 038
Share-based payments expense - - 24 - 24
Share-based payments deferred tax - - (0.1) - (0.1)
Dividends paid - - (6.3) - (6.3)
At 31 December 2019 {restated) 0.9 136.8 96.0 20.3 2540
Profit for the year - - 43 - 43
Other comprehensive expense - - - 20 20
Total comprehensive income - - 43 20 6.3
Issue of shares - 0.8 - - 0.8
Share-based payments expense - - 5.1 - 5.1
Share-based payments deferred tax - - 11 - 11
Dividends paid - - - - -
Capital contribution from the parent company (Note 21) - - 6.3 - 6.3
Employee taxes on settlement of share-based payments (Note 19) - - (6.3) - ' (6.3)

0.9 137.6 106.5 223 2673

At 31 December 2020

The amounts above are all attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company.

The accompanying notes to the accounts on pages 33 to 64 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2020

SDL Limited

31 December 2020

Restated®
2020 2019

Notes £m £m
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit for the year 43 19.8
Tax expense 3.6 7.2
Profit before tax 79 27.0
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10 3.8 33
Depreciation of right of use assets 20 75 6.0
Amortisation of intangible assets 11 10.5 9.5
Share-based payments expense 19 5.1 24
Interest expense 238 2.7
Foreign exchange expense / (income) 04 0.9
Cash generated from operations before changes in working capital and provisions 38.0 51.8
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables 34 6.4
(Decrease) / increase In trade and other payables 9.8 (10.4)
Cash generated from operations 51.2 47.8
Income taxes paid (3.6) (7.1)
Net cash flow from operating activities 47.6 40.7
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 10 (4.9) (5.6)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired - 13
Expenditure on intangible assets 11 (10.5) (10.1)
Net cash flow from investing activities (14.9) (14.4)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares, net of costs 18 0.8 -
Proceeds from external borrowings 16 63.0 26.2
Repayment of external borrowings 16 (63.0) (31.4)
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities 20 (8.0} (7.0)
Dividends paid 9 - (6.3)
Finance costs (0.9} (0.7)
Net cash flow from financing activities (8.1) (19.2) .
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 24.6 71
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 26.3 19.8
Effect of exchange rates changes 04 (0.6)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 16 513 26.3

Tax balances have been restated. See Note 2 for further details.

The accompanying notes to the accounts on pages 33 to 64 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2020

1 Corporate information

The consolidated financial statements of SDL Ltd (the ‘Group’) for the year ended 31 December 2020 were authorised for issue in accordance
with a resolution of the Directors on 27 May 2021. SDL Ltd is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in England whose shares
are privately owned by RWS Holdings Plc, a listed Ultimate Parent Company whose shares are publicly traded on the AIM Market. SOL Limited
is registered in England and Wales under company number 02675207. The consolidated financial statements of SDL Ltd and its subsidiaries
have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

The principal activities of the Group are described in Note 3.

2 Significant accounting policies
Note 2 includes a number of the Group’s accounting policies, specifically where there is no note to the financial statements for the respective
accounting policy. Accounting policies are included within the respective financial statement note where notes are prepared for key financial

statement areas e.g. Revenue.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of SOL Ltd and its subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting
Standards in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, as relevant to the financial statements of SDL Ltd. The Company
has elected to prepare its Parent Company financial statements in accordance with FRS 101 and these are presented on pages 65 to 76. The
consolidated financial statements are prepared on a histarical cost basis.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Sterling (GBP) and all values are rounded to the nearest hundred thousand except
where otherwise indicated.

Prior year adjustment

The Group identified errors within its assessment of current tax and deferred tax which date back prior to the earliest period presented within
these financial statements. In line with IAS 8, the Group has restated balances as at 1 January 2019 and restated its financial results for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group identified a number of adjustments which had the effect of understating deferred tax balances. These deferred tax adjustments
principally relate to the under-recognition of losses in prior periods in the US and in a number of other territories. Other adjustments were

identified which impact current tax and relate to adjustments relating to the over-recognition of current tax net liabilities. The following
summarises the principal issues identified:

e  Adjustments in respect of an additional £0.5m of deferred tax assets were included, where it was identified that the requirements
for recognition would have been met in prior periods.

e  Adjustments representing a £0.9m decrease on current tax liabilities and a £0.2 decrease on deferred tax assets were identified in
relation to the tax accounting for Group consolidation entries arising originally in previous periods.

e Adjustments include a £0.3m increase in deferred tax assets as a result of re-measurement of US temporary differences at the
relevant US state tax rates. Previously, the Group has recognised US temporary differences using the federal tax rate.

e  Adjustments in respect of £0.7m increase in deferred tax assets on US federal losses to correctly reflect the s382 study.
e  Adjustments in respect of £0.7m decrease in current tax assets comprise of a number of items of a clerical nature.

Other adjustments in respect of taxation, both current and deferred, were identified which led to a net positive impact of £0.1m on the net
assets of the Group.

The impact of the adjustments identified on the financial statements in previous periods is reconciled in full on the following page.
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2 Significant accounting policies continued

Prior year adjustment continued

The financial impact of the errors identified are as follows:

As at 31 December 2019 As at 31 December 2018

Reported Adjustment  Restated Reported Adjustment Restated

£m £m £m £m £m fm
Non-current tax assets 31 - 31 - - -
Current tax asset 4.3 (0.7) 36 6.6 ’ (0.3) 6.3
Non-current tax liabilities (4.3) - (4.3) - - -
Current tax liabilities (6.8) 09 (5.9) (11.2) 1.2 (10.0)
Deferred tax assets 7.0 13 8.3 8.9 0.4 9.3
Deferred tax liabilities (8.0) - (8.0) (8.7) - {8.7)
Retained earnings (94.5) (1.5) (96.0) (793) (1.3) (80.6)

Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2019:

As at 31 December 2019

Reported Adjustment  Restated

£m £m £m
Profit before taxation 27.0 - 27.0
Taxation (7.4) 0.2 (7.2)
Profit after taxation 19.6 0.2 19.8

There was no impact of the above on the Group's main adjusted earnings measure which is Adjusted EBITA. If the adjustments had been
included in the prior year results the effect on the Groups Earnings per Share (‘EPS’) would have been an Increase of 0.02p to EPS for a revised
value of 21.8p. The impact on the Group’s Diluted Earnings per Share would also have been an increase of 0.02p for a revised value of 21.3p.
The Group is no longer required to apply IAS33 and therefore no disclosures for EPS are included in these financial statements.

Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had cash of £51.3m and no borrowings. The facility the Group drew down from was fully repaid in the year
and terminated early in favour of the arrangements in place within the new Group parent, RWS Holdings Plc. Accordingly, the Group now has
access to the RWS Group financing arrangements and included as part of this is a five-year $120m revolving credit facility (RCF), expiring in
February 2024, of which $31m was in use at year end. At year end US$89m was undrawn, while the RCF also offers an accordion facility of
US$80m, subject to lender consent. The RWS Group has assessed its forecast compliance with these covenants at 31 March 2021, 30
September 2021 and 31 March 2022 and concluded that even in the most severe but plausible scenario modelled, the RWS Group will
continue to comply with its covenants.

The Group has a resilient balance sheet position, with net assets of £267.3m as at 31 December 2020, having made a profit for the year of
£4.3m and delivered net cash flows from operating activities of £47.6m for the year then ended.

The business continuity plans actioned by the Group to date have resulted in operations continuing on a remote working basis but with the
possibility of a reduction in revenues in the current year as a result of the uncertain macro-economic environment caused by the COVID-19
pandemic.

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecast scenarios for a minimum period of 12 months that, could arise if revenues were to reduce
compared to the expectations set at the year-end. These scenarios include a revenue decline of 20% for a period of six months, which the
Directors believe to be a severe but plausible scenario. All revenue reduction modelling is accompanied by a multi-phased cost reduction plan.
This includes the prioritisation of insourcing to reduce linguistic outsourcing costs, restrictions on the Group’s variable compensation plans,
restriction on new hires and tight control of discretionary spend. The global stay at home directive automatically results In additional cost
savings in respect of travel and entertainment.

In conclusion, the Directors believe that the Group is well-placed to manage its business risks and to counter a potential drop in revenues by
cost mitigation actions under their control. After due consideration of trading performance to date, the results of the stress-test scenarios and
the Directors’ view of the likelihood of these occurring, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements.
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2 Significant accounting policies continued

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated historical financial information has been prepared under the historical cost convention and is presented in Sterling (GBP). All
values are rounded to the nearest 0.1 million (£m) unless otherwise indicated. The functional currency of SDL Ltd is Sterling. The accounting
policies used in preparing the consolidated historical financial information for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been consistently
applied to all years presented and are as set out below. The Annual Report consolidates the financial information of SDL Ltd and the entitles it
controls (its subsidiaries) at 31 December 2020. Control is achieved where the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The financial information of the subsidiaries is prepared for the same
reporting period as the Parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resuiting from Intra-group transactions that are recognised are eliminated

in full.

Application of new and amended standards and interpretations

The following amendments, which were effective for the first time in the current y'ear but had no impact on the results or financial position of
the Group:

- Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

— Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations: Definition of a Business

— Amendments to {AS 1 and |AS 8 Definition of Material

~ Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 37 and IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (phase 1, phase 2 to follow in 2021)

— Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions

Accounting standards that are not yet mandatory and have not been applied by the Group

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2021 and earlier
application is permitted. The Group has not early adopted any of the following standards and does not expect their adoption to have a
material impact on current or future financial statements or any future foreseeable transactions:

Effective January 1, 2021
— Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
— Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

Effective January 1, 2022 '

— Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 16 and I1AS 41)
~ Amendments to IAS 16 — Proceeds before Intended Use

— Amendments to IAS 37 — Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Effective January 1, 2023 .
— Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
— Amendments to IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

Business combinations

The Group has elected not to apply IFRS 3 retrospectively to business combinations that took place before the date of 1 January 2004. As a
result, goodwill recognised as an asset at 31 December 2003 is recorded at its carrying amount and is not amortised. The acquisition method of
accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the
assets, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. Identifiable assets and liabilities acquired and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the

extent of any non-controlling interest. .

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired Is recorded as goadwill.
Transaction costs are expensed as incurred. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement. If the business combination allows for a provision of deferred or contingent
consideration, this will be provided in the accounts at the fair value.

Any changes to the fair value of deferred or contingent consideration are recognised in income statement. If the business combination allows
for deferred compensation this will be recognised in the Income statement over the service period.
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2 Significant accounting policies continued

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the gains or losses on
translation are included in the income statement. The assets and liabilities of overseas subsidiaries and branches are translated at the closing
exchange rate. Income statements of such undertakings are transiated at the average rate of exchange during the year. Gains and losses
arising on these translations are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in a separate component of equity. As
permitted by IFRS 1, the Group has elected to deem the cumulative amount of exchange differences arising on translation of the net
investments in subsidiaries at 1 January 2004 to be nil.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

Intra-company loans for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future are defined as quasi-equity loans.
Currency translation differences on retranslation of these loans at the balance sheet date are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred accumulated amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, unless they relate to qualifying assets. These costs
include interest payable, commitment and amortised arrangement fees.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the Group’s statement of financial position when the Group becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the Instrument. When financial instruments are recognised initially they are measured at fair value, being the transaction price
plus, in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they meet the following two conditions:

(a) they include no contractual obligations upon the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange financial assets
or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Group; and

(b) where the instrument will or may be settled in the Group’s own equity instruments, it is either a non-derivative that includes no obligation
to deliver a variable number of the Group’s own equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the Group’s exchanging a fixed
amount of cash or other financial assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the instrument so classified
takes the legal form of the Company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements for called up share capital and share
premium account exclude amounts in relation to those shares.

Trade receivables

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its business model for managing
financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in
the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

— itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

— its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Trade receivables, which generally have 30-90 day payment terms mainly depending on the jurisdiction, are carried at original invoice amount,
including value added tax and other sales taxes, less a provision for expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. There are no
trade receivables held by the Group where any significant financing component has been included due to the short-term nature of the Group’s
trade receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and bank deposits with an original maturity of 90 days or less. For the purpose of the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and bank deposits net of outstanding bank
overdrafts.

Trade payables

Trade payables are recognised at cost, which is deemed to be materially the same as the fair value.
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2 Significant accounting policies continued

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Obligations for loans and borrowings are recognised when the Group becomes party to the related contracts and are measured initially at fair
value less directly attributable transactions costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses arising on the re-purchase, settlement or other cancellation of liabilities
are recognised respectively in finance income and finance expense.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is
recognised in profit or loss. .

Derivative financial instruments

The Group from time to time enters into derivative financial instruments, principally forward foreign currency contracts to reduce its exposure
to exchange rate movements and interest rate caps to reduce its exposure to fluctuating interest rates. The Group does not hold or issue
derivatives for speculative or trading purposes.

Significant critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

Judgements

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make Judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. However, uncertainty about these estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Revenue = multi-element arrangements

To determine the appropriate revenue recognition for cantracts containing muiti-elements that include both products and services, we
evaluate whether the contract should be accounted for as a single, or multiple, performance obligations. Management is required to exercise a
degree of judgement in setting the criteria used for determining when revenue which involves several elements should be recognised and the
stand-alone selling price of each element. The Group generally determines the stand-alone selling prices of elements based on prices which
are not observable and are therefore based on stand-alone list prices which are then subject to discount. Further detail involved in estimating
standalone selling prices for the purpose of allocating the transaction price in multi-element arrangements is provided in Note 3.

This judgement could materially affect the timing and quantum of revenue and profit recognised in each period. Licence revenue in the year
amounted to £48.9m (2019: £51.2m).

Capitalised development costs

The Group capitalises development costs in line with IAS 38, Intangible Assets. Management applies judgement in determining if the costs
meet the criteria, and are therefore eligible for capitalisation. Significant judgements include the technical feasibility of the development,
recoverability of the costs incurred, economic viability of the product and potential market available considering its current and future
customers and when, in the development process, these milestones have been met (see Note 11). Development costs capitalised during the
year amounted to £8.0m {2019: £7.5m).

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions and estimates concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
significant risk of causing a materlal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financlial year are discussed

below:

Impairment

The determination of whether or not goodwill has been impaired requires an estimate to be made of the value in use of the cash generating
unit (CGU) or group of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation includes estimates about the future financial

performance of the CGUs, management’s estimates of discount rates, long-term operating margins and long-term growth rates {Note 13). If
the results of the CGU in a future period are materially adverse to the estimates used for the impairment testing, an impairment charge may

be triggered.
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Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, including transfer pricing, and the amount and timing of
future taxable income. Given the nature of the Group’s operating model, the wide range of international business relationships and the long-
term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or
future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. Differences of
interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective Group company’s domicile.

Following the introduction of IFRIC 23 in the prior year, Uncertainty over Tax Treatments, the Group has ensured it complies with the
requirements of the interpretation. The Group considers all tax positions on a separate basis with any amounts determined by what it
considers to be the most appropriate method of either the expected value or most likely amount method on a case by case basis.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further details on taxes are disclosed
in Note 8, the total value of transfer pricing UTPs was £4.1m (2019: £3.4m).

Other estimates and assumptions

Revenue ~ rendering of services

Management makes estimates of the total costs that will be incurred by SDL on a contract by contract basis. Management reviews the
estimate of total costs on each contract on an ongoing basis to ensure that the revenue recognised accurately reflects the proportion of the
work done at the balance sheet date. All contracts are of short-term nature. The majority of services work is invoiced on completion and the
amount of year end work in progress amounted to £12.9m (2019: £13.5m).

Leases — estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group is required to use an incremental borrowing rate (IBR) when it comes to measuring lease liabilities, this is because it cannot ready
determine the interest rate implicit in the lease. The (BR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term
with similar security, the funds required for the right of use asset, in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group would have to pay, which requires estimation given the lack of any observable rates for the Group’s subsidiaries. There is also
estimation where rates need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, where a lease is denominated in the
non-functional currency of that Group company}. Further details on leases are disclosed in Note 20.

3 Revenue from contracts with customers

Accounting policy
IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five step model to be applied to all sales contracts as outlined below. It Is based on the transfer of
control of goods and services to customers and replaces the separate models for goods and services.

Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

{dentify the performance obligations in the contract.

Determine the transaction price.

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.
Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance obligations.

[ N

The specific application of the five step principles of IFRS 15 as they opply to the Group’s revenue contracts with customers are explained below
at an income stream level. In addition to this, the individual performance obligations identified within the Group’s contracts with customers are
individually described as part of this note to the financial statements.

Multi-element arrangements

For multi-element arrangements, revenue is ailocated to each performance obligation based on stand-alone selling price, regardless of any
separate prices stated within the contract. This is most common within the Group’s contract for licences, which may include performance
obligations in respect of the licences, support and maintenance, hosting services and professional services. The Group’s software licences are
either perpetual, term or software as a service (Saa$) in nature. The Group’s revenue contracts do not include any material future vendor
commitments and thus no allowances for future costs are made.

The allocation of transaction price to these obligations is a significant judgement, more details of the nature and impact of the judgement are

included in Note 2. The identification of the performance obligations within some multi-element arrangements involves judgement, however
none of the Group’s contracts requires significant judgement in this regard.
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3 Revenue from contracts with customers continued
Accounting policy continued

Performance obligations
Disaggregated information about the Group’s revenue recognition policy and performance obligations are summarised below:

Perpetual and term licences .
The Group’s perpetual and term licences are accounted for at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the licence, occurring either

where the goods are shipped or, more commonly, when electronic delivery has taken place and there is no significant future vendor obligation.

The software to which the licence relates has significant standalone functionality and the Group has determined that none of the criteria that
would indicate the licence is a right to access apply. in addition, the Group has identified no other performance obligations under their
contracts for these licences which would require the Group to undertake significant additional activities which affects the software. The Group
therefore believes the obligation is right to use the licence as it presently exists and therefore applles the point in time pattern of transfer.
Transaction price is allocated to licenses using the residual method based upon other components of the contract. The residual method is used
because the prices of licenses are highly variable and there is no discernible standalone selling price from past transactions.

‘Saa$’ licences

Unlike the Group’s perpetual and term licences, the Group has identified that there are material ongoing performance obligations associated
with the provision of SaaS licences. The Group has identified that this creates a right to access the intellectual property, instead of a right to

use. Accordingly, the associated licence revenue is recognised over time, straight line for the duration of the contract. As with other licences, the
Group utilises the residual method to allocate transaction price to these performance obligations.

Support and maintenance
Support and maintenance represents a stand ready obligation to provide additional services to the Group’s licence customers over the period of

support included in the contract. The Group measures the obligation by reference to the standalone selling price, based upon internal list prices
subject to discount. The pattern of transfer is deemed to be over time on the basis that this Is a continuing obligation over the period of support
undertaken and accordingly, recognised as revenue on a straight line basis over the course of the contract.

Hosting services
The Group provides managed services {hosting) as part of certain contracts with customers. The pattern of transfer for the service is such that

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group and therefore, is recognised over time for the duration
of the agreement. Transaction price from the contract is alfocated to hosting services obligations based upon a cost plus method.

Professional services

The Group provides professional services to customers including training, implementation and installation services alongside certain contracts
for software licences. These services are sold in units of consultant time and are therefore measured on an output method basis. Revenue is
therefore recognised on these engagements based on the units of time delivered to the end customer. Transaction price is allocated based upon
the standalone selling price, calculated by reference to the internal list prices for consultant time subject to any discounts. A small number of
the Group’s professional services contracts are on a fixed price contract and the output method is used based on an appraisal of applicable

milestones.

Language Services
The Group’s Language Services contracts with customers provide for the Group to be reimbursed for their performance under the contract os
the work Is undertaken. Accordingly, as the Group has both the right to payment and no alternative use for the translated asset, the Group

recognises revenue over time for this performance obligation.

The Group measures the completeness of this performance obligation using input methaods. The relevant input method is the cost incurred to
date as a proportion of total costs, in determining the progress towards the completion of the performance obligation for Language Services
contracts. .

Accrued and deferred revenue arising on contracts is included in trade receivables as accrued income and in trade and other payables as
deferred income as appropriate

Language Services contracts are typically billed in arrears on completion of the work with revenue recognised as accrued income balances,
whilst the Group’s technology contracts are typically billed in advance and revenue recognition deferred where the performance obligation is
satisfied over time. The Group’s contracts for term ficenses are recognised upfront when performance obligations are delivered in the same
manner as a perpetual license sale but, typically, are billed annually and do not follow the same billing pattern as the Group’s contracts for
perpetual licenses, instead billing follows more closely that of a Saa$ license contract.
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3 Revenue from contracts with customers continued
Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from contracts with customers:

2020 2019

£m £m
Language Services . 255.9 262.1
Professional services 146 15.1
Licence revenue ? 489 51.2
Hosting services 38 3.2
Support and maintenance revenue 453 a4.7
Total revenue 368.5 376.3
Goods and services transferred at a point in time 28.7 323
Goods and services transferred over time 339.8 3440
Total revenue . 368.5 3763

1 Licence revenue as disclosed above includes the Group’s perpetual, term and Saa$ licences.
Revenue recognised during the period that was included within deferred revenue at 1 January 2020 was £37.7m (2019: £39.8m).

Capitalised contract costs

The Group holds material asset balances in respect of cantract costs capitalised as they meet the criteria under IFRS 15 as incremental costs to
obtain a contract. These primarily relate to the commissions paid on the acquisition of new contracts. The Group’s accounting policy and
associated disclosure for these balances are presented in note 14b to these financial statements.

Contract assets and liabilities

Contract assets and liabilities are recognised at the point in which the Group's right to consideration is unconditional, the Group uses the term
‘Trade Receivables’ for these financial asset balances. Contract assets are recognised where performance obligations are satisfied over time
until the point of final invoicing when these are classified as ‘Trade Receivables’.

For performance obligations satisfied over time, judgement is required in determining whether a right to consideration is unconditional. In
such situations, a receivable is recognised for the transaction price of the non-cancellable portion of the contract when the Group starts
satisfying the performance obligation. The Group recognises revenue for partially satisfied performance obligations as ‘Accrued income’, which
is presented in note 143 to these financial statements.

The total value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance obligations at the year-end is £48.8m (2019 -
£56.3m). Support and maintenance is a stand ready obligation discharged straight line over the duration of the Group’s software contracts, the
period over which this is recognised can be identified based on the value of current and non-current deferred income. Unsatisfied

performance obligations in respect of language and professional services are all short-term and expected to be recognised in less than one
year.

The Group offsets any contract liabilities with any contract assets that may arise within the same customer contract, typically, this only applies

to the Group’s licence and support and maintenance revenue contracts. In all material respects there are no significant changes in the Group’s
contract asset or liability balances other than business-as-usual movements during the year.

4 Profit on ordinary activities

2020 2019
Operating profit is stated after charging £m £m
Research and development expenditure 26.3 244
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 10) 38 33
Depreciation of right of use assets (note 20) 75 6.0
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets (note 11) 31 44
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 11) 74 5.1
Lease rentals for plant and machinery {note 20) 0.6 0.6
Lease rentals for land and buildings {note 20) . 15 35
Net foreign currency differences 04 0.9

Share-based payments expense ] 5.1 24
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4 Profit on ordinary activities continued
Research and development costs

Management continually review development expenditure to assess whether any costs meet the criteria for capitalisation. In addition to the
amounts charged to the income statement the Group has capitalised £8.0m (2019: £7.5m} of development costs in the year.

2020 2019
Auditor's remuneration ‘£m £m
Fees payable tothe Company’s auditors of the Parent Company and consolidated accounts 08 06
Audit of the financial statements of subsidiaries of the Parent Company 0.2 0.2
Audit related assurance services 0.1 0.1
Payments to predecessor auditor in the year -
Total 11 0.9

5 Employee costs and Directors’ remuneration

Accounting policy
Pension cost

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes for its employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group inn independently administered funds. Contributions to defined contribution schemes are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss in the period in which they become payable.

2020 2019

£m fm
\Wages and salaries 1785 180.9
Social security costs 22.9 20.6

- Defined contribution pension scheme cost 6.0 5.8

Share-based payments expense {note 19) 51 24
Total 2125 209.7
The average number of employees during the year including Executive Directors was as follows:

2020 2019

Number Number
Administration and commercial 1,296 1,283
Production . 3,154 2,959
Total average number of employees 4,450 4,242
The total of remuneration paid to statutory Directors during the year was as follows:

2020 2019

Em £m _
Wages and salaries 3.2 21
Defined contribution pension scheme cost 0.1 0.1

The Director’s wages and salaries expense for the year included severance payments of £0.9m (2019: £Nil). The highest paid Director’s wages
and salaries expense for the year was £1.9m {2019: £1.0m), included within this amount are severance payments of £0.6m (2019: £Nil). The
number of Directors who participated in a defined contribution pension scheme was 2 {2019: 2). The amounts paid in respect of pension
benefits for the highest paid Director was £0.1m (£0.1m).

During the year, the number of Directors who exercised share options was 2 (2019: 1} with a value of £6.0m (2019: £0.4m) and received shares
under a long-term incentive scheme. The aggregate of remuneration and amounts receivable under long-term incentive schemes of the
highest paid Director was £6.8m (2019: £1.4m), and Company pension contributions of £Nil {2019: £0.1m) were made to a money purchase
scheme on their behalf. During the year, the highest paid Director exercised share options with a value of £5.0m (2019: £0.4m) and received
shares under a long-term incentive scheme. The amounts disclosed within the current year include amounts in respect of severance and the
accelerated vesting of the Group’s LTIP scheme as a result of the Group’s all-share combination with RWS Holdings Plc, there were no such
similar costs in the prior year. Severance and LTIP costs arising as a result of the business combination have been included within Exceptional
items under Transaction related costs, see Note 6 for maore details.
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6 Exceptional items

Accounting policy

Exceptional items are those items that in management’s judgement should be disclosed separately by virtue of their size, nature or incidence, in
order to provide a better understanding of the underlying financial performance of the Group. In determining whether an event or transaction
is exceptional, management considers qualitative as well as quantitative factors such as frequency or predictability of occurrence.

2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019

Pre tax Tax impact Tatal Pre tax Tax impact Tota!
R £m ‘ £m £m £m £m ) fm
Restructuring costs 15 {0.3) 1.2 25 (0.6) 19
Transaction related costs {including £0.6m finance costs) 18.5 {0.9) 176 0.1 (0.1) -
Acquisition related costs - - - 0.1 (0.1) -
Other exceptional items (0.8) - (0.8) 04 - 0.4

Total exceptional costs ‘ 19.2 (1.2) 180 31 {0.8) 23

Restructuring costs
Restructuring costs relate to the costs of organisational change associated with the Group’s transformation programme. Normal trading
redundancy costs are charged to the income statement as incurred. The benefits of these programmes are reflected within operating profit.

Transaction related costs

Transaction related costs of £18.5m include costs arising on the Group’s all share combination with RWS Holdings Plc during the period. The
major components of these costs incurred include the transactions fees incurred by the Group (£10.0m), the IFRS2 charge for the accelerated
vesting of the Group’s LTIP schemes (£3.8m), severance costs associated with previous management (£3.2m) and the impairment of prepaid
costs for the Group’s RCF which has been replaced by the RCF with the new parent company (£0.6m, included as part of finance costs).

Other exceptional items

Other exceptional costs include a credit of £1.1m (2019: £0.6m charge) for tax penalties which are considered exceptional due to its size and
nature. During the year the Group was made aware by tax authorities that the charging of penalties would not be pursued on the Group's tax
provision and that only interest was intended to be charged on the amounts provided, accordingly as penalties were recorded against
Exceptional Items in previous periods, the credit for their reversal has also been included in Exceptional items.

Exceptional items include £6.0m of non-cash movements, relating to the Group’s Exceptional IFRS2 Charge and associated payroll taxes

(£3.8m), impairment of prepaid RCF fees {£0.6m), accrued but unpaid severance costs (£2.4m) and offset by the reversal of exceptional tax
penalties (credit of £0.8m), with £13.2m of cash outflows arising from exceptional items.

7 Finance expense

2020 2019
£m £m
‘Interest expense on borrowings - 0.9 11
Finance costs on lease liabilities under IFRS 16 (note 20) 19 16
Exceptional finance costs (note 6) v , _ . 06 -

8 Taxation

Accounting policy :

The charge for current taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-assessable or disallowed. it is calculoted
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The Group operates in numerous tax jurisdictions
around the world. At any given time, the Group is involved in disputes and tax audits and will have a number of tax returns potentially subject
to audit. Significant issues may take several years to resolve. in estimating the probability and amount of any tax charge, management takes
into account the views of internal and externol advisers and updates the amount of tax provision whenever necessary. The ultimate tax liability
may differ from the amount provided depending on interpretations of tax law, settlement negotiations or changes in legislation. As referenced
in note 2, the Group considers all tax positions separately and uses either the most likely or expected value method of calculation on a case by
case basis.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes
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Accounting policy continued

Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that this will not reverse in the foreseeable future; on the initial
recognition of non-deductible goodwill; and on the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and that, at the time of the transaction, does not affect the accounting or taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future toxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tox assets are reviewed at each reporting date. Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted bosis, and at the tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date that are expected to apply in the periods in which the asset or liability is settled. It
is recognised in the income statement except when it relates to items credited or charged directly to other comprehensive income or equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised within other comprehensive income or equity respectively (share-based payments). Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority, when the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis and that authority permits the Group to make a single net payment.

in the UK, the Group is entitled to a tax deduction for amounts treated as remuneration on exercise of certain employee share options. As
explained under ‘Share-based payments’ in Note 19, a remuneration expense is recorded in the consolidated income statement over the period
from the grant date to the vesting date of the relevant options.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of VAT except:
— where the VAT incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the VAT is

recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and
— trade receivables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as port of receivables or payables in the balance
sheet.

Taxation charge attributable to the Group
UK corporation tax for the year ended 31 December 2020 is calculated at 19% (2019: 19%) of the estimated assessable profit for the period.

Restated

2020 2019

£m £m
Current tax:
UK corporation tax at 19% (2019: 19%) 03 13
Overseas current tax (credit) / charge 6.2 46
Adjustment in respect of previous ;lears (2.0) 1.0
Total current tax charge 45 6.9
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1.0 0.6
Impact of change in tax rate (0.3) -
Adjustments to estimated amounts arising In prior perlods (L6) 0.3)
Total deferred tax (credit) / charge (0.9) 0.3
Total tax charge as per the income statement 36 7.2
Tax in other comprehensive income (1.0) {0.3)
Tax In equity (1.1) -
Tax attributable to the Group 15 6.9

in 2018, the Group finalised its last s382 calculation in respect of prior US acquisitions. This is included within the origination and reversal of
temporary differences in the prior year within the 2019 comparative information, no such amount was incurred in the current year.
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The charge for the year can be reconciled to profit for the year before taxation per the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss as follows:

Restated
2020 2019

) . . £m £m )
Profit for the year before taxation 7.9 27.0
Profit for the year before taxation multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax 15 5.1
in the UK of 19% (2019: 19%) '
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 31 0.6
Adjustment in respect of previous years (3.6) 0.7
Recognition of previously unrecognised trading losses / temporary differences {0.1) (0.3)
Utilisation of tax losses brought forward previously not recognised . - (0.3)
Higher/ (lower) tax rates on overseas earnings 16 13
Effects of changes in tax rates ' (0.3) -
Other movements ' 14 0.1
Tax charge as per the income statement 3.6 7.2
Effective tax rate 4% ) 27%

The Group’s taxation strategy is aligned to its business strategy and operational needs. The Directors are responsible for tax strategy
supported by a global team of tax professionals and advisers. SDL strives for an open and transparent relationship with all revenue authorities
and are vigilant in ensuring that the Group complies with current tax legislation.

The Group’s effective tax rate for the year is higher than the UK'’s statutory tax rate mainly due to the impact of non-tax deductibility of
exceptional costs related to the acquisition by RWS. The Group’s tax rate is also sensitive to the geographic mix of profits and reflects a
combination of higher rates in certain jurisdictions, such as Germany and Japan, a lower rate in the UK and USA, with other rates that lie in
between. The Group Is subject to many different forms of taxation including, but not limited to, income and corporation tax, withholding tax
and sales taxes.

The Group has operations in 39 countries and multiple states in the US.
Key influences

The Group has restated the 2019 tax balances as a result of a number of prior period adjustments, the impact of which have been disclosed in
Note 2. The adjustments to restate the prior year relate to a number of adjustments which had the impact of under-recognising deferred tax
on losses across a number of the Group’s territories, including the US and over-recognising net current tax liabilities in respect of uncertain tax
provisions.

The March 2021 Budget announced a further increase to the main rate of corporation tax to 25% from April 2023. This rate has not been
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, as a result deferred tax balances as at 31 December 2020 continue to be measured at 19%.
Management has assessed the deferred tax balances held and the rate at which they are expected to be realised and based on the exercises
performed, balances are not expected to be materially impacted by the UK rate change.

Tax liabilities are recognised when it is considered probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a taxing authority. The methodology
used to estimate liabilities is set out in Note 2. In common with other multinational companies and given the Group has operations in 39
countries, transfer pricing arrangements are in place covering transactions that occur between Group entities. The Group has undertaken a
review of potential tax risks and current assessments and whilst it is not possible to predict the outcome of any pending revenue authority
investigations, adequate provisions are considered to be included in the Group accounts to cover any expected estimated future settlement. In
carrying out this review, management has made judgements, taking into account: the status of any unresolved matters; the strength of
technical argument and clarity of legislation; external advice and statute of limitations. As a result of the review it has been concluded that
some adjustments are required to the historic transfer pricing arrangements specifically between the UK, ireland and the US. The Group has
entered into formal discussions in relation to this matter with tax authorities and the expected tax payment of £2.4m (2019: £2.4m) to the UK
tax authorities {after the use of tax losses) and repayment of £3.1m from the Irish tax authorities {2019: £3.1m) are included in non-current tax
liabilities and tax assets. The £3.1m tax asset is expected to be recoverable after more than one year.

The Group has continued to review its transfer pricing arrangements in other jurisdictions during the year, and although this review has not yet
been formally concluded, the value of transfer pricing uncertain tax positions at the year-end has increased to £4.1m {2019: £3.4m).
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Restated
2020 2019
£m £m
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Tax value of carry forward losses of UK subsidiaries 2.8 -
Tax value of carry forward losses of overseas subsidiaries ' 23 34
Movements in capital allowances 03 08
. Other temporary differences 42 41
Total deferred tax asset 9.6 ' 83
Deferred tax liabfiities in relation to:
Intangible assets 6.7 5.5
Other temporary differences 0.5 25

Total deferred tax liability 7.2 ) 8.0

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the
liability settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Losses

A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of losses where current forecasts indicate profits will arise in the future period against
which the losses recognised will be offset. At the balance sheet date the Group has unused tax losses of £72.3m (2019: £84.3m) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of £28.4m (2019: £12.7m) of such losses. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining £43.8m (2019: £71.6m) as it is not considered probable that there will be the required
type of future trading or non-trading profits available in the correct entities necessary to permit offset and recognition.

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets on losses of £5.1m (2019: £3.4m). The amounts recognised are based on the historical
profitability and the forecast future taxable profits of the relevant entities. Recognised deferred tax assets principally relate to UK and US
activities. The unrecognised deferred tax asset on losses is £8.8m (2019: £13.0m). The Group has recognised deferred tax assets on losses in
the US which have a 20 year expiry date and expects to use these losses within this period, the earliest date these losses are due to expire is 31
December 2033 and at the year-end losses amounted to £13.0m. Outside of the United States, the Group has recognised an immaterlal
amount of tax losses with expiry dates, principally in respect of the Group’s operations in China, the Group only recognises amounts expected
to be utilised before expiry.

Included within other short-term temporary differences are def